# **Minutes**

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee Thursday, 2 February 2017 Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW



## Published on:

Come into effect on: Immediately (or call-in date)

## **Members Present:**

Councillors Scott Seaman-Digby (Chairman)
Richard Mills (Vice-Chairman)
Tony Burles
Wayne Bridges
Duncan Flynn
Narinder Garg
Raymond Graham
Henry Higgins
Robin Sansarpuri

## **Officers Present:**

Fiona Gibbs, Stronger Communities Manager Naveed Mohammed, Service Manager for Business Performance Luke Taylor, Democratic Services Officer

## Also Present:

Councillor Jazz Dhillon

## 34. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

## 35. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

## 36. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 January 2017 were agreed.

## 37. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was agreed that all items of business would be considered in public.

## 38. HR AND RECRUITMENT REVIEW: FINAL REPORT

Members received a copy of the draft report of the review into Recruitment at London Borough of Hillingdon, following evidence sessions at the previous meetings of the Committee.

The Chairman informed Members that any comments on the report could be sent directly to Democratic Services, and the Committee agreed to feedback any comments and delegate authority to the Chairman and Democratic Services Officer to make any relevant changes to the report, with agreement from the Council's Workforce and Organisational Development Manager.

Members confirmed that they were also happy for the report to include an additional paragraph regarding staff IT competency.

RESOLVED: The draft Recruitment Review report was noted.

# 39. DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS 2017/18 - COMMENTS FROM POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEES

The Committee received the comments from Policy Overview Committees on the Cabinet's draft budget proposals for 2017/18.

The Labour Group commented on the savings to Adult Social Care, Public Health and Housing Services and expressed concern about any potential cuts to these services. The Chairman stated that the report indicated there would not be cuts to front line services, and most savings were made from Transformation and Zero Based Reviews.

Members agreed to note the budget and forward it to Cabinet for approval.

 RESOLVED: The Committee noted the budget proposals and supported sending the proposals to Cabinet.

## 40. USE OF DATA WITHIN THE COUNCIL

The Service Manager for Business Performance was in attendance at the meeting, and introduced the report to Members.

The Committee questioned how data was used in Community Safety, and were informed that data collected in partnership with the Metropolitan Police allows for reports to be produced on crime and any trends can be identified.

Data was used by a number of Council departments to analyse and establish trends, which helps the Council to consider issues within the organisation. Officers confirmed to Members that the Troubled Families agenda requires recognising and preventing issues that may impact upon Council resources, and using data helps the Council work with families to best address their needs. On a wider basis, service performance reports can also use the data to look at trends and this will help give areas that require more investigation.

Members thanked the Service Manager for Business Performance for the report, and commented that it was helpful to see how useful data could be to the Council's work. The Committee asked what could be done to further improve data work within the Council and heard that there are software solutions that allow analysis of real-time data, which would help the Council to easily deal with multiple ad hoc requests, although this software was expensive. Members commented that this would be helpful to the Council and investment should be considered.

RESOLVED: That the report was noted.

## 41. COMMUNITY COHESION AND HATE CRIME

The Stronger Communities Manager was in attendance and introduced the report to the Committee, confirming that there were fifty reports of hate crime in the last six months, which was under the average for London Boroughs. Furthermore, national concerns over anti-Semitism and Islamophobia were not reflected in Hillingdon, and no major concerns were registered from the local communities.

Responding to Members' questions, the Stronger Communities Manager confirmed that the Council have a duty to help victims and deal with perpetrators of hate crimes, especially if they are tenants of the Council, and this means some involvement in Police matters. In addition, the Council seeks good relations and community cohesion, and the Council's Community Safety and Anti-Social Behaviour teams are involved with the local Police Force to tackle discrimination.

The Committee asked whether any offenders had offended previously and if there were hotspots within the Borough where hate crimes were more common, and the Stronger Communities Manager confirmed that an answer will be sent to Members once the information has been gathered. (Action to be taken by Fiona Gibbs)

Members commented on the excellent work that is reflected in the low number of recorded instances around the Borough, and questioned how schools were involved in community cohesion. The Committee were informed that schools participated in the Prevent programme by law, and work was done within schools to hear concerns and tackle the causes of hate crime. Furthermore, there was an ongoing programme to visit schools to improve community cohesion. Councillors asked whether there were any sessions available to Members on the topic, and were informed that a briefing could be put on for Councillors should they wish.

RESOLVED: That the report was noted.

## 42. MODERN SLAVERY

The Stronger Communities Manager introduced the report to Members. Councillors heard that there has been one case related to the Modern Slavery Act, and the individual is under the Council's care. The Committee commented that they were happy with the Council's work, but asked to receive further information on what action the Council takes to ensure the supply chain is compliant with the Act, and how it was enforced. (Action to be taken by Procurement Team)

RESOLVED: That the report was noted.

# 43. FORWARD PLAN

RESOLVED: That the forward plan was noted.

# 44. WORK PROGRAMME 2016/2017

 RESOLVED: That the work programme was noted, with the addition of an update for the April meeting from the Procurement Team confirming the work London Borough of Hillingdon does to ensure the Modern Slavery Act is enforced throughout the Council's supply chain.